HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of Cabinet held at Council Chamber, The Shire Hall, St Peter's Square, Hereford, HR1 2HX on Thursday 6 April 2017 at 10.00 am

Present: Councillor AW Johnson (Chairman)

Councillor PM Morgan (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors H Bramer, DG Harlow, JG Lester, PD Price and P Rone and NE Shaw

Cabinet support

members in attendance

Councillors BA Durkin, JA Hyde, NE Shaw and EJ Swinglehurst

Group leaders in

attendance

Councillors JM Bartlett, RI Matthews and AJW Powers

Scrutiny chairmen in

attendance

Councillor WLS Bowen

Other councillors in

attendance:

None

Officers in attendance: Alistair Neill, Geoff Hughes, Martin Samuels, Claire Ward and Chris Baird,

Richard Ball, Steve Hodges and Steve Burgess

78. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

None.

79. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

80. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2017 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

81. PASSENGER TRANSPORT REVIEW

The cabinet member for transport and roads presented the report. He highlighted:

- That the recommended approach would deliver £740k savings over three years.
- The report does not include any proposals to withdraw subsidy for passenger services but here would be a need for review of subsidy in line with the adopted policies in the local transport plan.
- Bus users were consulted and the strong view was that rural services should be retained.
- Bus services in Herefordshire scored 95% for satisfaction according to the Transport Focus annual bus passenger survey.
- He thanked the head of transport and access for the work of his team in carrying out such a successful review.

All group leaders present thought that the report was positive and thorough.

A group leader agreed with the cabinet member for transport and roads that public transport needed to be retained and queried whether any shortfall in the use of the rural grant could be used for rural transport. The chief finance and S151 officer agreed to check the conditions of the grant.

The chairman of general overview and scrutiny was pleased to see that the views of the committee had been reflected in the report. He further noted that bus transport was essential and that it was also useful for tourists.

A group leader raised a concern about the views put forward that it would be acceptable to put bus fares up as the majority of the residents who had responded to the consultation do not pay to travel.

A group leader queried when the review into the system for looking at real time passenger information would be implemented. The head of transportation and access confirmed that work would be undertaken in conjunction with Stagecoach over the next two years and there would be a need to investigate which system would work best for Herefordshire.

A group leader noted that the majority of bus services were subsided and that if they were not used, then they could be lost and that parish councils needed to be aware of this. The cabinet member for transport and roads confirmed that there was ongoing communication with the parish councils in connection with this issue.

Resolved that:

- a. the approach required to ensure delivery of the savings of £740k, in accordance with the medium term financial strategy for the period 2017-18 to 2019-20 and service improvements for passenger transport, set out in this report at paragraph 15, be approved
- b. cabinet formally requests central government to review the English national concessionary travel scheme to seek further financial support for Herefordshire or allow greater local flexibility in how the scheme operates to ensure resources are targeted at maintaining access for all; and
- c. that dedicated support is made available to work with parish councils and community groups to develop local solutions to transport problems in rural areas of the county.

82. CORPORATE DELIVERY PLAN 2017-18

The cabinet member for economy and corporate services presented the report. He noted that the corporate delivery plan was aligned to the corporate plan. He further noted that the plan would be revised over the year to reflect any changes in priorities so that resources could be re-directed as appropriate. Cabinet would be presented with regular reports on performance against delivery of the key activity and achievement of the measures and there would be an annual report at June cabinet.

The directorate services team leader outlined the key projects which would take place over the forthcoming year.

The cabinet member for financial management and ICT queried whether the accommodation objective on page 95 would be delivered on budget. The cabinet member for contracts and assets confirmed that the works on Nelson House and Elgar House had been delivered under budget. However, it was anticipated that work on Blue School House would overspend. Officers were currently reviewing the specification for

this piece of work to identify savings. However, it was anticipated that the budget shortfall on this project would be found from within the overall accommodation strategy.

The cabinet member for young people and children's wellbeing proposed an amendment to box 5 and 6 under the keep children and young people safe and give them a great start in life section to include the words "particularly those with disabilities. It was agreed to amend this section to read "Increase the number of young people and families, particularly those with disabilities, accessing the local offer information and finding it useful".

A group leader commented it was an ambitious plan. He noted that estimated number of 8,620 children and young people that require support with mental health or emotional resilience appeared high. The interim director for children's wellbeing stated this was a significant number and that it reflects the national trend of identification. This was a priority in the children and young people's plan and a working group was delivering activities to improve the understanding of and support for mental health and emotional wellbeing. The Ofsted inspection last year had also covered aspects of mental health. The CAMHS service had been mentioned as a positive and exemplary example in terms of its initial response to a referral. The current health and social care overview and scrutiny task and finish group's report in connection with children and young people's mental health would also provide further insight into this area.

A group leader queried the progress in connect with the fire damaged building in High Town. The cabinet member for contracts and assets confirmed that there had been infrastructure issues with the site but these were being addressed and there would be movement once these issues had been resolved.

A group leader commented that the target on page 87 of 19.6 (maintain, and seek to improve still further, the quality of life for people with care and support needs) did not make sense. The director for adults and wellbeing explained that this was a national indicator and was a statistical number derived from the annual national adults survey. The response rate for Herefordshire was the highest in the country and that the county had the 5th best score in the country and was 2nd when compared with our statistical neighbours.

The chair of general overview and scrutiny commented that the issues faced by traveller children and ensuring that they lived in suitable accommodation should not be overlooked and that the committee would be looking at these issues.

A group leader asked for an update in connection with Model Farm, Ross on Wye. The Leader confirmed that this had been part of a bid by the local enterprise partnership (LEP). The director for economy, communities and corporate was also looking at other alternatives.

The cabinet member for young people and children's wellbeing stated that the work in connection with school improvement had been nationally recognised as good. The council was now in the second quartile of education measures.

Resolved that

The draft corporate delivery plan 2017/18 be approved.